
Innovations Academy Board Meeting: August 7, 2014 @ 6:30 PM 

Meeting location(s) 
Innovations Academy 
10380 Spring Canyon Road 
San Diego, 92131 

5519 McMillan Street 
Oakland, CA, 94618 

Public call in number 559-726-1300* 

Access code 151642 

*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in number is provided as 
a convenience to the public. 
 
Board Attendance 
       
 
Others in Attendance 
       
 
Agenda 

Topic Minutes 
! Call to order / roll call  
! Approval of current agenda  
! Approval of prior month meeting minutes  
! Public comments (3 mins per person)  
! Reports  

o Teacher briefing (Tony)  
o Financial update (Delano)  
o Director update (Christine) 

" Full time capacity/enrollment 
" Part time capacity/enrollment 
" Combined ADA (% and #) 
" LCAP implementation 
" SDUSD site visit draft report 

 

! Discussion items  
o Potential new Board members (Pattric) 
o Future site planning (Christine) 
o Director evaluation (Danielle) 
o CMSC contract (Christine) 
o Review IA Fiscal Year Board Calendar 

(Pattric) 
o Video regarding non-profit boards 

(Christine) 

 

o Assign new action items  
! Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting  
o Identify agenda items for next meeting  

  
 



Innovations Academy Board Meeting: July 22, 2014 @ 6:30 PM 

Meeting location(s) 
Innovations Academy 
10380 Spring Canyon Road 
San Diego, 92131 

5519 McMillan Street 
Oakland, CA, 94618 

Public call in number 559-726-1300* 

Access code 151642 

*Members of the public need not state their names when entering the conference call.  Call-in number is provided as 
a convenience to the public. 
 
Board Attendance 
Pattric 
Rawlins 

Danielle 
Strachman 

Nathan 
Cooper 

Stephen 
Rosen 

Tony 
Spitzberg 

  

 
Others in Attendance 
Christine 
Kuglen 

Michelle      

 
Agenda 

Topic Minutes 
! Call to order / roll call Call to order at 6:42 pm. 
! Approval of current agenda Vote: Steven moves to approve agenda, Danielle 

seconds. Unanimous approval. 
! Approval of prior month meeting minutes Vote: Danielle moves to approve prior month meeting 

minutes, Tony seconds. Unanimous approval. 
! Public comments (3 mins per person) None. 
! Vote on potential new board member – Eric Ludwig 

(Nathan) 
Discussion:  Pattric solicits discussion regarding Eric as 
potential Board member.  Nathan and Stephen explain 
why they believe Eric would be a good Board member.  
Vote: Pattric moves to elect Eric Ludwig as a Board 
member for Innovations Academy, Tony seconds. 
Unanimous approval. 

! Reports  
o Teacher briefing (Tony) Discussion: Tony reports on activities teachers are 

engaged in over the summer, including professional 
development activities, attending seminars, and planning 
for next year. IA is currently investigating the use of a 
Learning Management System (LMS) that would allow 
teachers to give assignments electronically and enable 
parents to monitor completion of assignments.  Pattric 
suggests using LMS to receive parent feedback for 
LCAP purposes. 

o Financial update (Delano) Discussion: Christine reports that no updates to report 
for the last month. 

o Director update (Christine) 
" Full time capacity/enrollment 
" Part time capacity/enrollment 
" Combined ADA (% and #) 

Discussion: Christine reports that 358 students are 
enrolled for the coming year, but she expects some 
students will not show up when classes begin.  Some 
classes are over-enrolled above 25.  Currently have 



Topic Minutes 
stronger enrollment than in previous years. 

! Discussion items  
o Director evaluation (Danielle) 
o Approve 2013-14 Revised P-2 ADA report 

(Christine) 
o Update on 2013-14 P-3 ADA report 

(Christine) 
o Approval of various contracts over $5,000 

for 2014-15 school year, including: ST 
Math, math curriculum for Middle School, 
Charter School Management Corp., and 
Barbara Turbin (cleaning services) 

o Review IA Fiscal Year Board Calendar and 
revise if necessary (Nathan) 

o Common core update (Christine) 
o SDUSD update (Steve) 
o Video regarding non-profit boards 

(Christine) 

Director evaluation 
Discussion: Danielle reports that she is working to create 
tangible metrics that can be used as part of evaluation.  
Christine presents a “Presentation of Learning” for the 
past year, which is used as part of the Director 
evaluation process.  Christine describes her background 
as a social worker and teacher.  Christine eventually 
began working with Danielle through a home school 
program and decided to begin IA.  Christine reports that 
IA has a structure in place to support the social and 
emotional needs of students.  Current challenges facing 
school involve drawing students that have higher needs 
for social/emotional support.  Focusing on providing 
parent engagement and information.  Academic program 
strengths include students’ interdisciplinary projects, 
which utilize a large number of guest experts.  Focusing 
on improving previous areas where curriculum was seen 
as not as strong, including math.  Also focusing on 
hiring support teachers that support classroom teachers, 
such as a media arts teacher.  Christine also provides 
update on director goals, which utilizes Q4 tool.  Q4 tool 
is also used to evaluate teachers.  Christine has 
implemented a merit pay system that 4 teachers utilized 
this past year.  Still working on creating a draft of a 3-
year facility plan.  Draft of new high school charter is 
still ongoing. 
 
Danielle discusses Director self-evaluation form.  
Danielle is working on creating more definable metrics 
for next year’s form.  Pattric requests that Danielle 
provide an updated version of the evaluation form that 
can be used during our next Board meeting. 
 
Approval 2013-14 Revised P-2 ADA report 
Discussion: Christine reports that P-2 revised up to 
320.51, which is 95.68%. 
 
Update on 2013-14 P-3 ADA report 
Discussion: Christine reports that P-3 is 319.5, which is 
95.59% 
 
Approval of contracts over $5,000 
Discussion: CSMC has offered to provide 5% discount if 



Topic Minutes 
IA pays up front entire amount of $45,600, instead of 
$48,000.  Discussion regarding value of CSMC’s past 
efforts on behalf of CSMC.  Pattric requests that 
Christine investigate price quotes from other vendors 
and that we continue to discuss this contract at next 
Board meeting. 
 
Review IA Fiscal Year Board Calendar 
Discussion: Pattric explains need to update Board 
calendar and requests that we go through this at next 
Board meeting with Delano. 
 
Common Core Update 
Discussion: Christine explains that teachers are 
receiving training on common core principles.  Focus 
now is on learning deeply rather than simply studying to 
pass a test. 
 
SDUSD Update 
Discussion: Stephen provides update on San Diego 
Unified School Board elections.  Expects pro-union 
school board.  Union is pushing for raises that may go 
up to 14%.  Thrive Charter School was initially turned 
down by District, but State has now granted them a 
Charter. 
 
Video Regarding Non-profit Boards 
Tabled until next meeting. 
 

o Assign new action items  
! Next board meeting  

o Confirm date of next meeting August 7, 2014 at 6:30 pm 
o Identify agenda items for next meeting o Report on director evaluation (Danielle) 

o CMSC contract (Christine) 
o Review IA Fiscal Year Board Calendar 

(Pattric) 
o Video regarding non-profit boards 

(Christine) 
 Adjourned at 8:27 am. 

 
The foregoing minutes were approved by the Board 
of Directors of Innovations Academy on _________. 
 
_________________________________________ 

       Secretary 



Innovations Academy Annual Director Evaluation Policy

The Director Evaluation is a key role of the Board of  Directors of Innovations Academy. The 
Director Evaluation ensures that the board is aware of milestones reached by the director and 
where support is needed for further development. The goal of the Board Evaluation procedure 
is to provide the Director with a structure to maintain continuous feedback and support with 
the Board of Directors for Innovations Academy. 

The Director will be evaluated during each contract year in accordance with the following:

1. Goal Setting (October) - During the annual board retreat, the director and board craft goals 
for the current school year in addition to the regular role and responsibilities of the 
director. Most goals will naturally follow from the Director Evaluation Report from the 
previous year.

2. Metric Tracking  (quarterly) - Metrics are how we track measurable goals of the director as 
well as overall school progress. The board and director track student achievement, 
financials, and the needs of the community (staff, student, parent, and the district). These 
metrics are a numerical and tangible measure that board members, school staff, and other 
community members can track and verify. At the end of the school year, these metrics are 
tracked against the previous year.

3. Self Evaluation (quarterly) - Innovations Academy students use self evaluations as one 
form of monitoring their progress which enables them to learn how to critique their own 
work. The Self Evaluation is made up of all the responsibilities of a director and additional 
bonus milestones. The director rates her/his performance on a defined rating scale during 
the year and delivers to the board with current metrics.

4. Presentation of Learning (twice/year) - Innovations Academy students use a Presentation of 
Learning format to showcase their work and skills learned during the year. The director 
presents similarly to the Board in both January and July going over her/his learnings over 
the year, areas of strength, and focus areas of development. The Director’s presentation 
includes data from Metric Tracking and the Self Evaluation. 

5. Feedback and Recommendations (twice/year) - After each presentation of learning, board 
members review Metric Tracking, the Self Evaluation, and Presentation of Learning. If 
needed, a board meeting is held to discuss the Director role and responsibilities.

6. Evaluation Report - A full report is written by a committee of the board and presented to 
the board for approval including the achievements and areas for improvement for the 
director and the school as a whole. This report is very useful in goal setting in October, 
keeps the board accountable, and can be used as a record of evaluation.



August 5, 2014

Annual Director Evaluation for the 2013/2014 School Year

The goal of the Board Evaluation procedure is to provide the Director with a structure to 
maintain continuous feedback and support with the Board of Directors for Innovations 
Academy. Below are observations and reporting from the board on the achievements and 
potential areas of development for Christine Kuglen.

Evaluation Recommendation: Overall, Christine’s performance this year has been exemplary. 
She has successfully managed the new Special Education program, has solid financials, and 
has an excellent standing with the Innovations Academy community.  The board encourages 
and would like to support Christine in focusing on strategic planning and assessment to take 
Innovations Academy to the next level. 

Below is information on each evaluation area:

1. Goal Setting - During the annual board meeting, in October 2013, the following bonus 
milestones were added as a supplement to the director’s regular responsibilities. Their 
current standing is underlined:
1.1. Implemented and Meets Expectations - Implement peer and Director reviews based 

on Q4 model for all teachers.
1.2. Implemented and Meets Expectations - All teachers reviewed pursuant to new 

evaluation procedures (item 1 above) prior to June 2014
1.3. Implemented and Exceeds Expectations - Implement merit pay system to be 

completed by June 1, 2014.
1.4. Still a work in progress - Create a DRAFT three year facility plan approved by the 

Board â€“ options for growth at existing location, options for relocation, options for 
property purchase by June 30, 2014.

1.5. Still a work in progress - DRAFT Plan development for Prop Z spending, approved 
by the Board, submitted to Prop Z approval committee by June 30, 2014.

1.6. Still a work in progress - Complete primary DRAFT of new High School Charter or 
current IA Charter revision, by June 30, 2014 inclusive of Board review and approval 

2. Metric Tracking - Since this is the first year that the board is using a defined set of criteria 
for metric tracking, this year’s metrics will serve as a baseline for following years. 
2.1. For student achievement the teachers facilitated a minimum of 3 interdisciplinary 

projects during the school year, there were 61 field experiences, and assessment test 
report findings have been ordered for Math and Language Arts. 

2.2. Financials are very positive with a cash net balance of $700,000 at the end of May 
2014. Additionally all payments were made on time.

2.3. Staff benefited from 4 paid professional development workshops. Staff retention is 
high at 94% and there were not any complaints to the board about the director.



2.4. Student numbers stayed approximately the same with 324.48 students during P1  and 
ending with 319.5 in P3. Additionally the attendance rate stayed similarly high with a 
96.62% P1 attendance rate and ending with a 95.59% P3 attendance rate.

2.5. Parent complaints were minimal with only one during the school year.
2.6. All district paperwork was sent in on time and complete.

3. Self Evaluation - Please see the attached document with all of the self evaluation criteria. 
To note some observations:
3.1. Areas of Strength (rated a 9 or higher)

3.1.1. (Line 34) Creating Policy Development - Teacher merit pay was created and 
successfully implemented this year. 

3.1.2. (Line 36, 38, 54, 56) Legal Compliance, Documents, and Safety Protocol
3.1.3. (Line 43) Organizational Responsibilities 
3.1.4. (Line 55 and 57) Business Operations - Working with business service providers 

and overseeing materials supply.
3.1.5. (Line 59 - 61) Human Resources - Oversight, Labor Relations, Personnel 

Policies.
3.1.6. (Line 69) Overseeing state testing
3.1.7. (Line 71 and 72) Student Services - Managed the El Dorado SELPA for a 

successful first year of administering our own Special Education Services.
3.1.8. (Line 74 and 75) Curriculum - Purchased new curriculum.
3.1.9. (Line 77) Parent Policy/Handbook.
3.1.10. (Line 84 - 87) Overarching Roles - Successful implementation of Innovations 

Academy’s updated and approved charter.
3.1.11. (Line 89 and 90) Decision making ability and modeling personal and 

professional ethics.
3.1.12. (Line 99) Bonus Milestone - Implement Merit Pay system.

3.2. Areas of Development (rated a 4 or lower)
3.2.1. (Line 40 and 41) Drafts and leadership of one and five year strategic plans.
3.2.2. (Line 67) Oversee progress on state and federal accountability measures. 

Assessment and data tracking is a work in progress.
3.2.3. (Line 100) Bonus Milestone - Draft three year facility plan to be approved by 

the board.
3.2.4. (Line 101) Bonus Milestone - Draft plan development for Prop Z spending.
3.2.5. (Line 102) Bonus Milestone - Complete primary draft of new high school 

charter.

4. Presentation of Learning - The director’s end of year Presentation of Learning is attached. 

5. Feedback and Recommendation from the Board:
5.1. Board commentary focused on opinions of the director’s self evaluation ratings and 

how the board can further support the director in her work. Please see the Self 
Evaluation document for Board comments. 

5.2. When considering the director’s areas of development the two main areas to focus 
on are higher level strategic plan development and assessment. 



5.2.1. One recommendation for strategic planning would be for the director to have 
quarterly offsites so that she can focus her full attention on strategy, 
development, and reflection. It’s understandably very difficult to work on 
written strategy documents with the hustle and bustle of everyday school life. 
The board can support the director in this by helping her to schedule these 
offsites. Additionally, at the discretion of the director, she could enroll board 
members, teachers, other staff, and community members to brainstorm with 
her and potentially attend these offsites.

5.2.2. A recommendation for assessment would be to work an assessment piece into 
the teacher’s goals for the year and to potentially make whole school wide 
assessment days on the calendar so that all staff are proactive in supporting 
each other in finishing assessment at the same time.

Overall, Christine’s performance this year as been exemplary and the board encourages and 
would like to support Christine in focusing on strategic planning and assessment to take 
Innovations Academy to the next level. Please see that attached appendix documents for 
further information.



1DPH�DQG�'DWH�RI�(YDO
&KULVWLQH�.XJOHQ���-XO\
����

%HJLQV�ZLWK�D�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�/HDUQLQJ
LQFOXGLQJ�VWUHQJWKV��ZHDNQHVVHV��DQG�KRZ
WKH�ERDUG�FDQ�VXSSRUW�WKH�'LUHFWRU��OLQN�WR
SUHVHQWDWLRQ��

KWWSV���ZZZ�GURSER[�
FRP�V�X[L\�\�ZZR[�UJG�5HSRUWRQ*RDOV���DQG���32/-XO\�����SGI

0HWULF�7UDFNLQJ ����������<HDU�%DVHOLQH

%RDUG�&RPPHQWDU\
�3OHDVH�SXW�\RXU

QDPH�DQG�WKHQ�\RXU
FRPPHQW�

����������<HDU
*RDOV

6WXGHQW�DFKLHYHPHQW�
3URMHFW�%DVHG�/HDUQLQJ��1XPEHU�RI
SURMHFWV ��SHU�WHDFKHU�PLQLPXP

��SURMHFWV�SHU
WHDFKHU�SHU�\HDU

3URMHFW�%DVHG�/HDUQLQJ��1XPEHU�RI�ILHOG
OHDUQLQJ�H[SHULHQFHV �� ��

0DWK��SUH�DQG�SRVW�PHDVXUHV� 0$3�WHVW�UHSRUW�RUGHUHG
3UH�WHVW�LQIR�DGGHG
E\�2FW��

/DQJXDJH�$UWV��SUH�DQG�SRVW�PHDVXUHV� 0$3�WHVW�RUGHUHG
3UHWHVW�LQIR�WR�EH
DGGHG�E\�2FW��

)LQDQFLDOV�
&DVK�QHW�EDODQFH��QHVW�HJJ� ����.�DW�0D\�FORVH
$ELOLW\�WR�PDNH�DOO�SD\PHQWV�RQ�WLPH �������
6WDII�

'HYHORSPHQW�ZRUNVKRSV��IRU�IXWXUH�\HDUV�
KDYH�WKH�WHDFKHUV�UDWH�WKH�ZRUNVKRSV�RQ
HIIHFWLYHQHVV�DQG�DSSOLFDELOLW\�

���-XGR�0DWK��3'�
4XHVWLRQLQJ�7HFKQLTXHV�
5HIOHFWLRQ�3DJHV�

:RUNVKRSV�WR�VWDUW
WKH�\HDU��0DWK
6ROXWLRQV�
'LVFLSOLQH
'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�

6WDII�UHWHQWLRQ��RI�WKRVH�QRW�OHW�JR� ������

EHJLQQLQJ�WKH�\HDU
ZLWK����WHDFKHUV���
DUH�QHZ�WR�,$

1XPEHU�RI�FRPSODLQWV�DERXW�WKH�'LUHFWRU
IURP�WHDFKHUV�WR�WKH�%RDUG �
6WXGHQW�&RPPXQLW\�
6WXGHQW�1XPEHUV�IURP�EHJLQQLQJ�WR�HQG�RI
\HDU

3�����������3��������
3��������

�����DQWLFLSDWHG�LQ
IDOO�

$WWHQGDQFH�5DWH
3�����������3��������
3���������

3DUHQW�&RPPXQLW\�
1XPEHU�RI�FRPSODLQWV�DERXW�WKH�'LUHFWRU
IURP�SDUHQWV ���)LHOG�WULS�FRQFHUQ�
1XPEHU�RI�UHSHDW�FRPSODLQWV��IURP�WKH
VDPH�SDUHQWV� �
1XPEHU�RI�UHSHDW�FRPSODLQWV��WKH�VDPH
W\SH�RI�FRPSODLQW� �
'LVWULFW�1HHGV�
3HUFHQW�RI�GLVWULFW�SDSHUZRUN�VHQW�LQ�RQ
WLPH ����
1XPEHU�RI�FRPSODLQWV�DERXW�,$�UHFHLYHG�E\
WKH�GLVWULFW�DQG�UHSRUWHG�WR�WKH�'LUHFWRU �

'LUHFWLRQV��3OHDVH�UDWH�\RXUVHOI�IURP��������RQ�KRZ�ZHOO�\RX�DUH�SHUIRUPLQJ�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FDWHJRULHV��5DWLQJV� ���1R�SURJUHVV�RU�1�$������,QLWLDO�/HJZRUN������0RYLQJ�7RZDUGV�&RPSOHWLRQ������0HHWV�([SHFWDWLRQV�����
([FHHGV�([SHFWDWLRQV���������&RPSOHWHG�ZLWK�([FHOOHQFH�

(YDOXDWLRQ�&ULWHULD�DQG�'HVFULSWLRQV
2FWREHU�������(YDO�QRW

VWDUWHG�XQWLO�-DQ� 1RWHV -DQXDU\����� 1RWHV
$SULO
���� 1RWHV

-XO\
���� 1RWHV

%RDUG�&RPPHQWDU\��3OHDVH�SXW
\RXU�QDPH�DQG�WKHQ�\RXU

FRPPHQW�

3ULPDU\�VWDII�OLDLVRQ�ZLWK�ERDUG��DWWHQGV
ERDUG�PHHWLQJV��UHVSRQG�WR�ERDUG
TXHVWLRQV���HGXFDWH�ERDUG�DERXW�VFKRRO
SKLORVRSK\�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV� �

ZRQGHULQJ�LI�,�VKRXOG�EH
GLUHFWLQJ�WKH�ERDUG
PRUH" �

ZRXOG�VWLOO�ORYH�IHHGEDFN
IURP�WKH�ERDUG�RQ�KRZ�PXFK
WKH\�ZDQW�PH�WR�EH�GLUHFWLQJ
VRPHWKLQJ �

LPSURYLQJ��,�PDGH�D�IRFXV�RI�UHVSRQGLQJ
SURPSWO\�WR�HPDLOV�IURP�ERDUG�PHPEHUV�DQG
SURYLGLQJ�D�FRKHUHQW�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ
/&$3�/&))

'DQLHOOH���,�WKLQN�WKLV�QXPEHU�LV
WRR�ORZ��&KULVWLQH�DWWHQGV�DOO
PHHWLQJV�DQG�LV�WKH�SULPDU\
OLDLVRQ�ZLWK�WKH�VWDII��:H�VKRXOG
WDON�DERXW�LI�WKHUH�LV�HQRXJK
GLUHFWLRQ�IURP�KHU�WKRXJK�

5HSRUWV�WR�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�LV
UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DOO�QHJRWLDWLRQV�IRU
FRQWUDFWV��GHHGV�DQG�IDFLOLWLHV�QHJRWLDWLRQV � �

QRW�PXFK�WR�GR�LQ�WKLV
FDWHJRU\ �

&RPSOHWHG�QHJRWLDWLRQV��(QWHUHG�LQ�QHZ
QHJRWLDWLRQV�IRU�0HGLD�$UWV�DQG�UHQHZLQJ
FRQWUDFWV�IRU�QH[W�VFKRRO�\HDU

(QJDJH�DQG�RYHUVHH�SXEOLF��PHGLD�
SROLWLFDO�UHODWLRQV��HQJDJH�ZLWK�6'86'
ERDUG�PHPEHUV�DQG�VWDII��)XWXUH��'HYHORS
VRFLDO�PHGLD�VWUDWHJ\�DQG�PHGLD�RXWUHDFK� �

SODFHG�DG�LQ�QHZ
SXEOLFDWLRQ�UHDFKLQJ
�������IRONV�LQ�RXU�DUHD Q�D

KDYH�QRW�GHGLFDWHG�WLPH�WKLV
PRQWK �

HQJDJHG�QHZ�RXWUHDFK�PLQL�PDJD]LQH�
QHWZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�RWKHU�FKDUWHU�VFKRROV



3ROLF\�GHYHORSPHQW �
QRW�PXFK�SROLF\�JHWWLQJ
GHYHORSHG�ULJKW�QRZ � QR�QHZ�SROLF\�GHYHORSPHQW � QHZ�WHDFKHU�H[SHFWDWLRQV�FUHDWHG

'DQLHOOH���,�ZRXOG�DVVXPH�ZH
UH
RQO\�ZULWLQJ�SROLF\�ZKHQ�LW
V
QHHGHG���QRW�MXVW�WR�ZULWH�SROLF\�
0D\EH�ZH�QHHG�WR�WDON�DERXW�ZKDW
SROLFLHV�DUH�QHHGHG�WR�ILJXUH�RXW�LI
WKH�JRDO�LV�VWDWHG�SURSHUO\�

$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�DQG
RYHUVLJKW � �

2YHUVHH�OHJDO�FRPSOLDQFH�DQG
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�VFKRRO �

FRPSOHWHG�ILUVW�VWHS�LQ
OHJDO�SURFHVV�ZLWK
:HQG\�7XFNHU�RI
3URFRSLR � QR�QHZ�OHJDO�RU�GRFXPHQWLQJ �� OHJDOO\�FRPSOLDQW

2YHUVHH�OHJDO�FRPSOLDQFH�DQG
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�%RDUG��%URZQ�$FW�
HWF� � Q�D

QRWKLQJ�DSSOLFDEOH�WKLV
PRQWK �

,�DP�ZRQGHULQJ�LI�WKLV�LV�SDUWLDOO\�ERDUG
UHVSRQVLELOLW\

'DQLHOOH���$JUHH�ZLWK�&KULVWLQH
V
VWDWHPHQW��0D\EH�WKLV�LVQ
W�D�JRDO
IRU�KHU�

6XEPLWV�GLVWULFW��VWDWH��DQG�IHGHUDO
FRPSOLDQFH�GRFXPHQWV � ��

FRPSOLDQW�DOO�\HDU��PRVW�UHFHQWO\�VXEPLWWHG
/&$3

3UHSDUH�DQG�GHOLYHU�UHSRUWV�RQ�DUHDV�RI
UHVSRQVLELOLW\��VDPH�DV�URZ��� � � WKLV�VHHPV�WKH�VDPH�DV�DERYH
'UDIWV�RQH��DQG�ILYH��\HDU�VWUDWHJLF�SODQV
�2FHDQ�+LJK�6FKRRO�FKDUWHU��ORQJ�WHUP
IDFLOLW\�QHHGV��FRQVXOWLQJ�ZLWK�RWKHU
SULQFLSDOV�DERXW�ORQJ�WHUP�VWUDWHJ\�
FXUULFXOXP�HYROXWLRQ��\HDUO\�PLOHVWRQHV�� �

WKLV�LV�VRPHWKLQJ�,�IHHO�LV
D�ELJ�QH[W�VWHS �

PHW�ZLWK�5D\�5RGULTXH]�WR
GLVFXVV�IXWXUH�IDFLOLW\ �

VWLOO�GRQ
W�KDYH�D�SODQ��,�ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�EHJLQ
ZRUN�RQ�WKLV�GXULQJ�WKH�VXPPHU�EUHDN

'DQLHOOH���ERDUG�FDQ�KHOS�ZLWK�WKLV
WR�GHYHORS�D�SODQ�

/HDGV�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ 1�$
ORRNLQJ�IRUZDUG�WR�VXPPHU�WR
EHJLQ �

ZH�QHHG�WR�ZULWH�D�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR
LPSOHPHQW�LW

'DQLHOOH���ERDUG�FDQ�KHOS�ZLWK�WKLV
WR�GHYHORS�D�SODQ�

&RPSOHWHV�%RDUG�DVVLJQHG�WDVNV � � ,�FRPSOHWHG�DQ\�WDVNV�DVNHG�RI�PH
2UJDQL]DWLRQ
(VWDEOLVK�DQG�IROORZ�HIIHFWLYH�FROODERUDWLYH
PHHWLQJ�DQG�GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�SURFHVVHV
�GHYHORSLQJ�FRPPLWWHHV��ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�3$� � �

,�IHHO�WKDW�,�KDYH�LPSURYHG�LQ
OHDGLQJ�VWDII�PHHWLQJV ��

WHDFKHUV�DUH�LQYLWHG�WR�FROODERUDWH�UHJXODUO\
RQ�D�YDULHW\�RI�DUHDV�RI�VFKRRO�LPSURYHPHQW
DQG�REMHFWLYHV

(VWDEOLVK�HIIHFWLYH�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH
RUJDQL]DWLRQ�ZLWK�FOHDU�OLQHV�RI�DXWKRULW\
DQG�GHOHJDWLRQ � � RXU�WHDP�LV�IXQFWLRQLQJ�ZHOO �� FRPSOHWH

&UHDWHV�D�FROODERUDWLYH�VFKRRO�FXOWXUH� � �
WHDP�FROODERUDWLRQ�KDV
LPSURYHG�WKLV�\HDU ��

DOZD\V�D�ZRUN�LQ�SURJUHVV��,�FROODERUDWH�ZLWK
VFKRRO�FRXQVHORU��DGPLQ�DQG�WHDFKHUV�WR
FRQWLQXDOO\�LPSURYH�VFKRRO�FXOWXUH��'XH�WR
WKHVH�FROODERDUDWLRQV�LW�KDV�EHHQ�GHFLGHG�WR
VXSSRUW�RXU�����JUDGH�SRSXODWLRQV�WR�VROLGLI\
WKHLU�FRPPXQLW\�E\�QRW�WDNLQJ�LQ�QHZ
VWXGHQWV�LQ�WKRVH�JUDGHV��7KDW�LV�MXVW�RQH
LPSDFW�RI�P\�FROODERUDWLRQV

'HYHORS�PDVWHU�SURJUDP�RI�WKH�VFKRRO�
LQFOXGLQJ�URRP�DQG�WHDFKHU�DVVLJQPHQWV � �� �� WKLV�LV�D�VWUHQJWK

'HYHORS�VFKRRO�FDOHQGDU � Q�D QR�ZRUN�WKLV�PRQWK ��

WKLV�LV�D�VWUHQJWK��'RQQD�VXSSRUWV�PH�RQ
WKLV��:H�KDYH�VXEPLWWHG�RXU�FDOHQGDU�IRU
QH[W�\HDU�

%XVLQHVV�2SHUDWLRQV

2YHUVHH�EXGJHW�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG
LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ � � DWWHQG�/&))�WUDLQLQJ �

,�UHDOL]HG�WKLV�\HDU�WKDW�VWDUWLQJ�,$�GXULQJ
YHU\�WU\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�WLPHV�KDV�FUHDWHG�D�YHU\
IUXJDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�DSSURDFK�WR�ILQDQFH

'DQLHOOH���,
G�UDWH�WKLV�KLJKHU��6R
PDQ\�VFKRROV�KDYH�WDQNHG�WKDW
VWDUWHG�RXU�\HDU��&KULVWLQH�KDV
H[FHOOHG�KHUH�

6XEPLWV�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WR�%RDUG � Q�D QR�QHZ�SROLF\ �
WKLV�VKRXOG�UHDOO\�VD\�RYHUVHHV�ILQDQFLDO
VWDWHPHQWV�EHLQJ�SUHVHQWHG�WR�ERDUG

'DQLHOOH���DJUHH�ZLWK�&KULVWLQH
V
WKRXJKWV�

'UDIWV�DQG�LPSOHPHQWV�ILVFDO�SROLFLHV � �
VWDUW�FUHDWLQJ�/&$3
IUDPHZRUN � VHH�QXPEHU����DERYH

6LWH�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV�RYHUVLJKW � �
GHDOLQJ�ZLWK�FXVWRGLDO
LQFRQVLVWHQFLHV �

,�IHHO�,�KDYH�VRPH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LMQ�WKH�IDFW
WKDW�WKH�GLVWULFW�KDV�DVVLJQHG�D�IXOO�WLPH
FXVWRGLDQ�WR�,$�

2YHUVHH�VDIHW\�FRPSOLDQFH �� Q�D

QR�VDIHW\�LVVXHV��GRQQD
DVVLJQHG�WR�VDIHW\�SODQ
GHYHORSPHQW �� FRQWLQXLQJ�ZLWK�QR�VDIHW\�LVVXHV

/LDLVRQ�ZLWK�%XVLQHVV�0DQDJHU�RU
EXVLQHVV�VHUYLFH�SURYLGHU � �

RQJRLQJ�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK
'HODQR �� QR�FRPPHQW

6FKRRO�VDIHW\�RYHUVLJKW�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW � � UXQQLQJ�VPRRWKO\ �� VHH����

2YHUVHH�PDWHULDOV�VXSSO\ � RQJRLQJ
GRQQD�DVVLJQHG�WR�RUGHUV�
DSSURYHG�E\�PH �� WKDQN�JRRGQHVV�IRU�'RQQD�

+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV
+XPDQ�UHVRXUFHV�RYHUVLJKW��UHFUXLWPHQW�
KLULQJ��GLVPLVVDO��PDQDJHPHQW��IHHGEDFN�
FUHDWH�	�UHYLVH�MRE�GHVFULSWLRQV��SD\UROO
GHFLVLRQV� � � ��

WKHVH�PRQWKV�DUH�KHDY\�IRU�+5��,�KLUHG�DQ
DUW�WHDFKHU��D��UG�DQG��WK�JUDGH�WHDFKHU

/DERU�UHODWLRQV � � ��
KDQGOHG�GLIILFXOW�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU�FKDQJHV
ZHOO

,PSOHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO�SROLFLHV��LQFOXGLQJ
&RQIOLFW�5HVROXWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV� � � QR�QHHGHG�LQWHUYHQWLRQV �� VXFFHVVIXO



3URYLGH�VWDII�ZLWK�SURIHVVLRQDO�VXSSRUW
�ZRUNVKRSV��VWDII�WUDLQLQJ�GHFLVLRQV�
REVHUYDWLRQV��VWDII�PHHWLQJV�DQG
SURIHVVLRQDO�GHYHORSPHQW� � � ZHHNO\�PHHWLQJV � ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�REVHUYH�PRUH�RIWHQ�QH[W�\HDU
3HUVRQQHO�VXSHUYLVRU�LQVWUXFWLRQDO�OHDGHU
�REVHUYDWLRQV��IHHGEDFN��UHVHDUFK�DERXW
EHVW�SUDFWLFHV� � REVHUYHG�HYHU\�WHDFKHU �

REVHUYDWLRQV�XVLQJ�4��
DWWHQG�86'�OHDGHUVKLS�LQIR
ZLWK�7RQ\ � VHH����

&RQGXFWV�VWDII�HYDOXDWLRQV �
PHW�ZLWK�PHULW�SD\
FDQGLGDWHV � ORYH�4���VWUXJJOLQJ�ZLWK�WLPH �

WKH�PHULW�SD\�JRDOV�DQG�UHYLHZ�ZRUNHG
JUHDW��:LOO�EH�LPSOHPHQWLQJ�WKH�JRDO
VWUXFWXUH�IRU�DOO�VWDII�WKLV�FRPLQJ�\HDU

3HUIRUPDQFH�LPSURYHPHQW�RU�OHWWHU�RI
UHSULPDQG�RYHUVLJKW � Q�D QRQH�QHHGHG �

ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�ZRUN�RQ�GHYHORSLQJ�IRUPDO
OHWWHUV�IRU�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU�IHHGEDFN�WR�VWDII

$FKLHYHPHQW�7HVWLQJ
2YHUVHH�SURJUHVV�RQ�VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO
DFFRXQWDELOLW\�PHDVXUHV � � ZRUN�LQ�SURJUHVV
&UHDWHV�%RDUG�UHSRUW�RQ�VWDWH�DQG�ORFDO
DFFRXQWDELOLW\�PHDVXUHV � Q�D �

,�KDYH�JLYHQ�UHSRUWV�EXW�QRW�FUHDWHG�ZULWWHQ
UHSRUWV

2YHUVHH�VWDWH�WHVWLQJ � � SUHSDUDWLRQ ��
DWWHQGHG�SUHSDUDWLRQ��RYHUVLJKW�RI
DVVHVVPHQW�FRRUGLQDWRU

6WXGHQW�6HUYLFHV
6SHFLDO�(GXFDWLRQ�3URJUDP�2YHUVLJKW
�PDQDJH�WKH�VSHFLDO�HGXFDWLRQ�VWDII��27�
6/7��(G�6SHFLDOLVWV���FXUULFXOXP�DQG
LQWHUYHQWLRQ� � �� VXFFHVV

0DQDJH�(O�'RUDGR�6(/3$��DWWHQG�6(/3$
PHHWLQJV��VXEPLW�SDSHUZRUN��EXGJHW� � ��

FRPSOHWHG�VXFFHVVIXO�ILUVW�\HDU��DWWHQGHG
PDQ\�WUDLQLQJ�VHVVLRQV��OHDUQLQJ�PDQ\�QHZ
WKLQJV

&XUULFXOXP
2YHUVHH�VHOHFWLRQ�RI�VFKRRO�FXUULFXOXP � �� SXUFKDVLQJ�QHZ�FXUULFXOXP
2YHUVHH�WKH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�FXUULFXOXP
DQG�SURJUDPPLQJ � ��
3DUHQW�&RPPXQLW\�,QYROYHPHQW
'UDIW�DQG�RYHUVHH�SDUHQW�SROLFLHV
�KDQGERRNV� � � FRPSOHWH
,PSOHPHQW�VWXGHQW�VXVSHQVLRQ�SROLFLHV � � FRPSOHWH
,PSOHPHQWV�VWXGHQW�H[SXOVLRQ�SROLFLHV � � FRPSOHWH
2YHUVHH�SDUHQW�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�UHODWLRQV
�3DUHQW�$VVRFLDWLRQ��FRPPXQLW\�JURXSV�
QHWZRUNLQJ� � � FRPSOHWHG

2YHUVHH�SDUHQW�OLDLVRQ � �
RXU�3$�LV�QRW�YLEUDQW��,�DP�DW�D�ORVV�LQ�WKLV
DUHD

'DQLHOOH���PD\EH�ERDUG�FDQ�KHOS
ZLWK�WKLV�

6WXGHQW�SDUHQW�WHDFKHU�FRPSODLQWV � � QRQH�WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�PDGH
2YHUDUFKLQJ�5ROHV
,PSOHPHQWV�SURYLVLRQV�RI�&KDUWHU � �� RXU�ILUVW�\HDU�ZLWK�RXU�QHZ�FKDUWHU
/HDGV�&KDUWHU�UHYLHZ�DQG�UHQHZDO�SURFHVV Q�D � WKLV�\HDU�QR�UHQHZDO
/HDGV�VFKRRO�WR�DFKLHYH�LWV�PLVVLRQ�YLVLRQ
DQG�JRDOV � �� RXU�PLVVLRQ�LV�IRUHIURQW�LQ�DOO�ZH�GR

$VVHVV�VFKRRO�QHHGV�DQG�FUHDWH�HIIHFWLYH
SODQV�WR�PHHW�WKRVH�QHHGV � ��

WKLV�LV�D�VWUHQJWK�IRU�PH��,�DP�ZHOO�DZDUH�RI
RXU�ZHDNQHVVHV��,�UHDFK�RXW�IRU�DVVLVWDQFH
DQG�ZH�PDNH�FKDQJHV�EDVHG�RQ
FROODERUDWLRQ��FUHDWLYH�LGHDV�DQG�LQIRUPHG
SHGDJRJ\�

/HDGHUVKLS�DQG�(WKLFDO�&RQGXFW
'HPRQVWUDWH�VNLOOV�LQ�GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�
SUREOHP�VROYLQJ��PDQDJLQJ�FKDQJH�
SODQQLQJ��PDQDJLQJ�FRQIOLFW��DQG
HYDOXDWLQJ � �� ,�EHOLHYH�,�DP�D�VNLOOHG�OHDGHU
0RGHO�SHUVRQDO�DQG�SURIHVVLRQDO�HWKLFV�
LQWHJULW\��MXVWLFH��DQG�IDLUQHVV�DQG�H[SHFW
WKH�VDPH�EHKDYLRUV�IURP�RWKHUV � � ,�EHOLHYH�,�DFW�SURIHVVLRQDOO\
0DNH�DQG�FRPPXQLFDWH�GHFLVLRQV�EDVHG
XSRQ�UHOHYDQW�GDWD�DQG�UHVHDUFK�DERXW
HIIHFWLYH�WHDFKLQJ�DQG�OHDUQLQJ��OHDGHUVKLS�
PDQDJHPHQW�SUDFWLFHV��DQG�HTXLW\ � �

WKHUH�LV�VR�PXFK�FRQIOLFWLQJ�GDWD��,�OHDG
EDVHG�RQ�LQWHOOLJHQFH��FROODERUDWLRQ�DQG
H[SHUWLVH�LQ�FKLOG�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�LQIRUPHG
GHFLVLRQV�EDVHG�RQ�FRQVWUXFWLYLVW�SHGDJRJ\

(QFRXUDJH�DQG�LQVSLUH�RWKHUV�WR�KLJKHU
OHYHOV�RI�SHUIRUPDQFH��FRPPLWPHQW��DQG
PRWLYDWLRQ �

ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�FRQVXOW
WHDFKHUV�RQ�WKLV � ZRXOG�OLNH�WR�WKLQN�,�DP�GRLQJ�WKLV

3URWHFW�WKH�ULJKWV�DQG�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�RI
VWXGHQWV�DQG�VWDII � � VHOI�H[SODQDWRU\
7RWDO�IRU�DOO�PLOHVWRQHV

%RQXV�0LOHVWRQHV



,PSOHPHQW�SHHU�DQG�'LUHFWRU�UHYLHZV
EDVHG�RQ�4��PRGHO�IRU�DOO�WHDFKHUV �

VSHQW���KRXUV�ZLWK�.�
*DOODJKHU�DW�%DNHU�(OHP �

DOO�WHDFKHUV�WUDLQHG�DQG�REVHUYHG�XVLQJ�WKH
4��WRRO��,W�ZDV�QRW�RQ�D�VFKHGXOH�UHJXODU
HQRXJK�WR�ZDUUDQW�XVLQJ�LW�IRU�ILQDO
HYDOXDWLRQV��7HDFKHU�H[SHFWDWLRQV�DQG
VFKHGXOLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�FKDQJHG�IRU�QH[W�\HDU
VR�WKDW�IXOO�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�SODQ�ZLOO
WDNH�SODFH

$OO�WHDFKHUV�UHYLHZHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�QHZ
HYDOXDWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV��LWHP���DERYH��SULRU
WR�-XQH����� � RQ�WUDFN �

WHDFKHUV�ZHUH�UHYLHZHG�LQIRUPDOO\�DQG
XSFRPLQJ�FRQWUDFWV�GLVFXVVHG��1HZ�HYDO
SURFHGXUHV�XQNQRZQ�WR�PH

,PSOHPHQW�PHULW�SD\�V\VWHP�WR�EH
FRPSOHWHG�E\�-XQH�������� �

PHW�ZLWK�PHULW�SD\
WHDFKHUV � RQJRLQJ�HYDOV�ZLWK�WHDFKHUV ��

FRPSOHWHG�PHULW�SD\�V\VWHP�ZLWK�WHDFKHUV�
$GGHG�WR�H[SHFWDWLRQV�IRU�DOO�WHDFKHUV�IRU
������\U�

&UHDWH�D�'5$)7�WKUHH�\HDU�IDFLOLW\�SODQ
DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�±�RSWLRQV�IRU
JURZWK�DW�H[LVWLQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RSWLRQV�IRU
UHORFDWLRQ��RSWLRQV�IRU�SURSHUW\�SXUFKDVH
E\�-XQH��������� � � � KDYH�QRW�FRPSOHWHG�WKLV�WDVN
'5$)7�3ODQ�GHYHORSPHQW�IRU�3URS�=
VSHQGLQJ��DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�
VXEPLWWHG�WR�3URS�=�DSSURYDO�FRPPLWWHH�E\
-XQH��������� � �

VWLOO�UHVHDUFKLQJ�WHFK�FRVWV
IRU�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUQHW
HTXLSPHQW �

ZDV�QRW�VXEPLWWHG�WR�ERDUG�E\�-XQH���WK�
0LJKW�EH�UHDG\�E\�-XO\�ERDUG�PHHWLQJ

&RPSOHWH�SULPDU\�'5$)7�RI�QHZ�+LJK
6FKRRO�&KDUWHU�RU�FXUUHQW�,$�&KDUWHU
UHYLVLRQ��E\�-XQH����������LQFOXVLYH�RI
%RDUG�UHYLHZ�DQG�DSSURYDO �

YLVLWHG�(.$FDGHP\�LQ
/DV�9HJDV � RQJRLQJ�PHHWLQJV � ZRUNLQJ�RQ�LW



Christine Kuglen

Presentation of Learning



Why me?

My background and strengths…



Social Emotional Program



• Strengths 
– Solid structure 

– Culture 

– Training and support 

– Solution Center 



• Challenges 

!
–We are drawing students that need support 

–We are still growing as a school 

–We are functioning in a paradigm that differs 
from our own 

– People sometimes come for the projects but 
don’t support the social emotional program



What to do?

• How I am addressing the needs: 
– More parent education and information 

– More training for staff 

– Slowing down the growth 

– Intensifying the marketing of the academic 
excellence



Academic Program

• Strengths 
– Interdisciplinary projects 

– Increased number of professional guest 
experts 

– Increased number of field study experiences 

– Increased access to curriculum that aligns 
with our philosophy 

– Increased skill level with project 
development and implementation



• Challenges 
– Assessment 

– Paradigm of “Academic Excellence” 

– Parent Communication 

– Increasing consistency among staff



What to do?

• What I am doing to address the 
challenges? 
– Hiring support teachers that collaborate well 

with classroom teachers 

– Implementation of new parent 
communication tools such as Schoology, 
Home-School Logs, Syllabus access to parents 

– Development of consistent learning structures 
within projects and strong collaboration



Director Goals
• Goal 1 & 2: Implement peer and director 

reviews based on Q4 model for all 
teachers and use for evaluation 
– Report on Goal 
• Additional meeting and observation with Kathleen 

at her new school 
• Q4 used with all teachers 

– Next steps 
• Requirements for teachers 
• Use Q4 as a tool  
• Formulate an evaluation based on expectations, 

goal setting and input from Q4



• Goal 3: Implement Merit Pay System 
– Report on Goal 
• 4 teachers chose to do the Merit Pay Program 

• All reported success and favorable reactions to the 
process 

• All stated that it is something all teachers should 
do anyway 

– Next Steps 
• Implement the goal setting program with all staff



• Goal 4: Create a DRAFT 3 year facility 
plan approved by the board 
– Report on Goal 
• Incomplete, need support 

• Not enough information 

• Met with Ray Rodriguez and waited months for 
information 

– Next Steps 
• Set a date for  3 year facility plan completion or 

several options



• Goal 5: Draft Plan Development for Prop Z 
spending, approved by Board and 
submitted to Prop Z committee 
– Report on Goal:  
• Incomplete 

• See goal 4 above 

– Next Steps: 
• Seek council on options for purchasing a building  

and remodeling, purchasing land, permanent 
facility for IA



• Goal 6: Complete primary DRAFT of new 
High School Charter or current IA Charter 
Revision 
– Report on Goal 
• Incomplete 

• Still working 

– Next Steps 
• Keep working



 
Charter School Management Corporation 
Helping Charter Schools Succeed 
Corporate Headquarters 
40925 County Center Drive 
Temecula, CA 92591 

May 18, 2014 

Services Agreement for Innovations Academy 

This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) for charter school business support services 
is between the Charter School Management Corporation (hereinafter referred to as 
“CSMC”) and IACS (hereinafter referred to as “Customer” or “you”). CSMC and 
IACS are each individually a “party” and sometimes referred to collectively as the 
“parties.” 

The parties to this Agreement understand that this is an agreement whereby IACS 
desires to retain CSMC, because of CSMC’s expertise, prior experience and 
comprehensive service offerings, as they relate to IACS operation of one or more 
charter schools, and that CSMC desires to provide expertise for the benefit of IACS 
using its knowledge, skills, experience and abilities.  

  



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 1 of 13 
!

CSMC Scope of Service Summary 

Summary of Innovations)Academy 
The following information regarding IACS operations, size and authorizing 
agency(ies) has been provided by IACS, and CSMC may rely on such information. 
Number of schools = 1 
Approximate number of students* = 325  
Authorizing agency or agencies = San Diego Unified  

Summary of services offered within: 
! Back-Office Services 

! Charter Vision Access 

Contract Period: 

The Contract Period shall be July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2016  

Summary of Pricing: 

Setup Fee = $ 0 
Ongoing Monthly Fee = $ 4,000 

*The pricing set forth above is predicated on CSMC’s understanding of IACS’s 
support needs, based on IACS’ representations. If IACS’s number of students is 
appreciably different from this number, CSMC will adjust its fees accordingly. With 
that principle in mind, CSMC will use reasonable efforts to modify elements of its 
program to accommodate IACS’ changing needs. 

  



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 2 of 13 
!

CSMC Scope of Services 

In order to support IACS, CSMC shall provide the following specific services 
(defined below as the “Services”): 

1) Fiscal 
a) Bookkeeping Support – Utilizing an enterprise-quality bookkeeping system 

from Sage, one of the country’s largest bookkeeping software companies, CSMC 
will provide a complete bookkeeping solution to IACS. Specifically, CSMC will: 
i) Chart of Accounts – Create a Standard Account Code Structure (SACS) and 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) compliant and IACS 
tailored Chart of Accounts. 

ii) General Ledger – Create and maintain SACS and GAAP compliant General 
Ledger. CSMC will modify, revise, and incorporate more or less detail in 
account code structure as requested by IACS. 

iii) Accounts Receivable – Monitor receipt of revenues tied to budget and 
expected entitlements. Includes all collection activities necessary to obtain 
past due funding. 

iv) Accounts Payable – Process all vendor invoices and payments. Includes 
utilizing GAAP system for verification, approval, and payment. System 
includes utilization of AP batch approvals, and check register reviews. 
Includes preparation of all 1099’s. 

v) Fund / Restricted Accounts – Track restricted revenues (e.g. Title I) and/or 
other revenues client requests in writing that CSMC separately track (e.g. 
parent fundraising) and corresponding expenditures via unique account 
coding to yield separate net income / loss per account. 

b) Fixed Assets and Inventory Control – Create and maintain asset tracking and 
depreciation schedule system which is integrated into the General Ledger. 

2) Payroll 
a) Payroll setup – Based upon the payroll information from IACS, CSMC will 

enter each full- and part-time employee into an enterprise-class payroll service, 
for purposes of calculating appropriate withholdings, taxes and other deductions. 
IACS will be responsible for paying the payroll service’s fees directly. 

b) Payroll processing – Includes updating, maintenance, and regular, emergency 
and special payroll entry, as requested by IACS. Payroll processing includes all 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 3 of 13 
!

of the following: 

i. Complete STRS and PERS reporting through the County Office of 
Education. Please note that some Counties or Districts charge a fee to charter 
schools to transmit STRS and PERS information to the STRS and PERS 
systems. If the county or district charges such a fee, IACS will be responsible 
for paying this fee directly. 

ii. Voluntary Deductions (e.g. 403(b)) 
iii. Distribution of pay warrants and direct deposit administration 

iv. Distribution of W2’s 
v. Processing of Worker’s Compensation 

vi. Salary adjustments 
vii. Verify Budget Numbers, Dates and Rates of Pay 

viii. Prepare and Maintain Annual Calendars 
ix. Process Exit Forms (resignations, terminations, etc.) 

c) Insurance services and coordination – CSMC will act as the bookkeeping 
liaison for workers compensation and Health and Welfare policies. CSMC will 
assist in the selection of insurance service providers (if requested by school), 
emphasizing selecting a provider that will provide high value support to the 
charter school. 

3) External Reporting 

a) Preparation and data submittal of required budget reports in SACS format 
– includes 1st Interim, 2nd Interim, next year proposed, and unaudited actual to 
district, county and state entities. 

b) Attendance – includes preparation and data submittal of Period 1 (P1), Period 2 
(P2), and annual (P Final) attendance reports to district, county and state 
entities. 

c) Audit – CSMC will act as the lead point of contact with IACS’s auditor and 
will work with the auditor through finalization of the audit report. Based on 
completion of consolidated financial statement audit, CSMC will coordinate the 
preparation and submission of Federal Form 990 and California Form 199 by 
applicable deadlines with external accounting firm.  

d) Categorical program budgeting and oversight – separate fund tracking for all 
restricted or categorically relevant programs. 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 4 of 13 
!

e) Consolidated Application – If IACS wishes to apply, CSMC will complete 
Parts 1 and 2 of the No Child Left Behind Consolidated Application, which is 
used to apply for federal Title funds (e.g. Title I). Additionally, CSMC will 
provide assistance during the audit required by the Single Audit Act of 1984. 

f) National School Lunch Program (NSLP) – If your school participates in this 
program, CSMC will assist with NSLP bookkeeping, submission of monthly 
food program reimbursement forms and completion of required annual reports. 

g) CBEDS – Assist schools in the completion of their School Information Form 
for Independently Reporting Charter Schools CBEDS annual survey. 

h) General Reporting – includes any necessary grant, award, program, state, 
county, and district report related to financial, or operating activity. This section 
does not apply to CALPADS data reporting. 

4) Internal Reporting and Budgeting 
a) Budgeting/Cash Flow – CSMC collaboratively with IACS shall develop and 

modify both current and future year budgets and pro forma cash flow models. 
All state mandated development and adoption timelines shall be incorporated 
into the planning process. At least one budget revision shall occur each year 
upon certification of the P1 report. Other modifications are to be performed as 
necessary or requested by IACS, including for strategic planning purposes. In 
today’s challenging economic times, it is crucial that the budget is constantly 
reviewed and modified as needed; therefore, there are no limits to the number 
of budget revisions that may be requested by IACS. Cash flow timing and 
Budget to Actual reporting on a monthly basis shall be reported to IACS. 

b) Internal Monthly Reporting – Please note that CSMC’s Charter Vision® web 
portal (described in item #5 below) provides anytime, anywhere client access to 
dozens of detailed financial reports. In addition to this, CSMC will create and 
send to IACS monthly reports including: 
i) Budget to actual income statement 

ii) Balance sheet 
iii) Cash flow projections 

iv) Fiscal analysis and commentary as applicable 
c) Board Meeting Support – CSMC’s School Business Manager will be available 

as requested for IACS’s board meetings to present financial reports and/or 
answer financial questions (by teleconference or in person). There is no 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 5 of 13 
!

limitation to the number of times IACS may request the School Business 
Manager’s attendance – on average, CSMC’s clients tend to request the School 
Business Manager’s presence every other month. Additionally, CSMC will 
provide your board of directors with training and access to our Charter Vision 
system. This will allow the board to retrieve financial statements and “board 
reports” 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. 

5) Charter Vision® 
a) Charter Vision is CSMC’s online, client-specific business information portal. 

Charter Vision has your school’s latest and detailed financial metrics and 
reports, upcoming deadlines, shared document templates, latest 
announcements, and upcoming deadlines. Access this portal anywhere, 
anytime. CSMC believes this is a great tool for increasing access and 
transparency to internal constituents. For instance, charter school board 
members can access the latest board and financial reports directly through 
Charter Vision. School may add as many licenses and grant access to an 
unlimited number of people at no charge. 

6) Policies 
a) Fiscal/Operating Procedures – With the collaboration of IACS, CSMC will 

assist in the development and maintenance of fiscal and operating procedures 
and control policies. 

b) Safety Manual – With the collaboration of IACS, CSMC will develop and 
maintain a complete and compliant Safety Manual. 

7) Client Support 
a) Client Support – At IACS’s written request, CSMC will provide assistance 

with funding, budgeting, strategy, fiscal control, or other 
operational/financial questions or issues. 

8) Charter Development and GRANTS Administration 
a) Grants – Track direct and allocate costs to grants. 

b) Charter Renewal – On a separate fee basis, CSMC will assist with a charter 
petition for renewal.  

Fees 
One-Time Setup Fee – $ 0  



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 6 of 13 
!

This fee includes all of the activities necessary to get your information into the CSMC 
system to enable the above services. This includes such information as: 

1. Exporting information from your current bookkeeping system (if you are an 
operating charter school) or gathering initial bookkeeping information (if 
you are a new school) into our enterprise-quality software system 

2. Working with you to input all of your employees’ personal- and 
compensation-related information into our payroll system 

3. Identifying all of the revenue programs your school is possibly eligible for, 
assisting you to make strategic decisions about which ones to pursue, and 
helping you to apply to any you might have missed to ensure your school 
receives as much revenue as possible 

4. Projecting your cash flow needs for the upcoming contract period and 
helping you start identifying possible ways of surviving any gaps 

5. Identifying which financial reports you would like to see on an ongoing 
basis to help you make the best strategic decisions and keep other 
stakeholders informed 

6. Assessing your current operational and financial policies, comparing them 
to current best practices, and improving those that need to be updated 

7. Ensure that you are comfortable with how CSMC will support you and 
answer any of your initial questions 

Scope of Specific Services 
The specific services, work and tasks set forth above shall collectively be referred to 
as the “Services.” CSMC shall only be required to perform the Services, and shall not 
be required to perform any services, work or tasks other than the Services. If CSMC 
does perform services, work or tasks other than the Services, CSMC will not be 
required to do so in the future, and CSMC may with the consent of Customer seek 
reimbursement or payment from Customer for such services, work or tasks. Each 
agreement is different, and Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Services that 
CSMC is required to perform under this Agreement do not include all of the services 
CSMC has the ability to perform, and specifically does not include every service 
referred to or listed in CSMC’s website (www.csmci.com) or other materials. 

Ongoing Fee for Services 

In addition to the One-Time Set-Up Fee, IACS shall pay to CSMC monthly 
installments of $ 4,000 beginning in July 1, 2014. This fee shall cover payment to 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 7 of 13 
!

CSMC for the Services. IACS shall pay this ongoing fee for the Services until the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement, at which time IACS shall within 15 days 
pay CSMC any unpaid monthly fees for Services. IACS will promptly pay to CSMC 
the amounts set forth in this Agreement upon receipt of each monthly billing 
statement. Customer’s payment obligation is absolute, and Customer may not 
withhold or deduct payment for any reason. 

Term of Agreement 
Setup will begin on or around July 1, 2014 and will last for all of that month. 

The term of this Agreement and CSMC’s obligation to perform the Services will 
begin on July 1, 2014 (“Start Date”) and will be deemed automatically renewed on 
the annual anniversary of the Start Date, unless either party provides the other party 
with written notice 45 days in advance of the next anniversary of the Start Date of its 
intent to not renew this Agreement. If CSMC does not physically receive such a 
notice of non-renewal prior to or on the 45th day before the next Start Date, then 
CSMC may rely on the automatic renewal of the term of this Agreement. However, in 
no event shall the term of this Agreement exceed the charter of IACS. 

Parties – No Agency 
This Agreement is not intended to, and shall not be construed to create the 
relationship of agent, employee, partnership, or joint venture, or any other 
relationship other than independent contractor between CSMC and IACS. CSMC 
shall be free to provide similar services for other clients. 

Communication Between the Parties 

IACS will direct all communication to the CSMC Account Manager and CSMC will 
direct all communication to IACS’s designated primary contact, unless either party 
designates another representative and provides written notification of the change to 
the other party. CSMC agrees to keep all communication and work product with 
IACS confidential to the allowable extent of State and Federal Law. 

Parties Are Sole Obligors 

This Agreement is entered into by the IACS for itself alone and not on behalf of, or as 
an agent for, any other entity, agency, school, or school district. Any obligation of the 
parties to this Agreement is and shall remain the sole responsibility of the parties. 
CSMC agrees that no employee, executive, shareholder or director of IACS shall be 
personally liable for payment or any breach of this Agreement, and that CSMC may 
only look to IACS for payment or performance of the obligations required under this 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 8 of 13 
!

Agreement. Likewise, IACS agrees that no employee, executive, shareholder or 
director of CSMC shall be personally liable for payment or any breach of this 
Agreement, and that IACS may only look to CSMC for payment or performance of 
the obligations required under this Agreement. In addition, CSMC will be providing 
Services only to Customer, and will not be required to perform work or services to 
any company or person affiliated with Customer. 

Document Retention 
Customer agrees that it will be responsible for providing CSMC with all records 
pertinent to the Services, including information stored electronically such as e-mails 
and other computerized records. Customer agrees to retain, and not destroy, its 
records for the duration of any period mandated by applicable laws. CSMC shall 
retain its files for 3 years, after which time CSMC shall destroy its files unless 
Customer requests in writing that CSMC retain files for shorter or longer retention 
period. 

No Guarantee – Limitation to Services and Exclusion of Liability for Other 
Work 

CSMC cannot guarantee that the Services it provides under this Agreement will yield 
the results sought by IACS. CSMC will use good faith efforts in providing Services to 
secure the reasonable objectives sought by IACS during CSMC’s performance of its 
Services under this Agreement. IACS understands and agrees that it is retaining 
CSMC to perform only those Services listed above and defined in this Agreement as 
the Services. IACS agrees that CSMC will have no liability for, or indemnity 
obligations arising out of, CSMC’s provision of any services, task or work not 
included within the definition of Services. 

No Liability for Referral 
The Services which CSMC is required to perform under this Agreement do not 
include referring Customer to any other service provider, person or company. 
However, from time to time, customers sometimes seek a referral from CSMC. 
Customer acknowledges and agrees that if it seeks a referral from CSMC, Customer 
shall be responsible for interviewing, researching, and retaining any such service 
provider, person or company; and Customer shall rely on its own assessment in 
making any hiring decision. CSMC does not warrant or guarantee the services, work 
or results of any service provider, person or company which CSMC may refer to 
Customer. 

CSMC’s Right to Rely 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 9 of 13 
!

In performing the Services under this contract, CSMC has the right to rely upon the 
truthfulness, completeness and accuracy of the information and data provided to 
CSMC by IACS, its directors, officers, employees and agents. CSMC shall not be 
expected to, and IACS may not rely on CSMC to, disclose errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, and misappropriation of assets, or illegal acts that may exist at one or more 
schools or offices operated by Customer. IACS understands and agrees that CSMC 
has no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in IACS’s internal 
controls as part of CSMC’s provision of Services under this Agreement. In addition, 
IACS shall have the responsibility to promptly notify CSMC of any material change 
in IACS or IACS’s operations that might impact CSMC’s ability to provide the 
Services under this Agreement. 

Assignment 

This Agreement is not assignable without the written consent of the parties hereto. 

IACS’s Direction - Indemnification 

IACS acknowledges that by providing the Services, CSMC performs an advisory and 
task-related function, and therefore provides the Services at the direction of IACS. 
IACS retains ultimate decision-making authority on the execution of agreements, 
transactions and payments, and the determination of rights, processes, controls and 
obligations rest entirely within the discretion and control IACS. To the extent that 
IACS properly directs CSMC, and to the extent that CSMC fails to properly perform 
the Services, CSMC shall indemnify and hold IACS and its officers and employees 
harmless from and shall defend at its own expense all claims, demands, or suits at law 
or equity arising in whole or in part, but only to the extent that they arise from 
CSMC's active negligence or express breach of its obligations under this Agreement. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall require CSMC to indemnify IACS against claims, 
demands or suits based upon intentional or negligent acts of IACS, its agents, officers 
or employees. 

Professional Services Exclusion 

Customer acknowledges and agrees that CSMC does not provide legal services or 
licensed accounting services, and that those and other licensed professional services 
are not included within the Services which CSMC is required to provide under this 
Agreement. Customer agrees to consult a lawyer and/or licensed accountant if 
Customer seeks legal or accounting advice, and shall not rely on CSMC for such 
advice, consultation or services. 

Charter Revocation, Notice to Cure, or Closure 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 10 of 13 
!

Unless included within the definition of Services for which CSMC is responsible 
under this Agreement, CSMC shall not be responsible to do any work or perform 
services related to any charter revocation, notice to cure or related notices; nor shall 
CSMC be responsible for doing any work or performing any services related to any 
closure of any school operated by Customer. 

Customer’s Premises/Facilities 

Customer agrees that it, and not CSMC, is responsible for the physical premises and 
facilities Customer operates, including whether those premises/facilities comply with 
the American Disabilities Act and any other applicable statutes or regulations. 
Customer is responsible for complying with all applicable health and fire code 
requirements and zoning laws. Customer shall maintain all local approvals including 
applicable fire marshal clearances, certificates of occupancy, signed building permit 
inspections and approved zoning variances. 

Customer’s Insurance Responsibility 

Customer represents and warrants that it has obtained property general liability 
insurance, workers’ compensation insurance, automobile insurance (to the extent 
applicable), and insurance coverage for negligence, errors and omissions/educators 
legal liability, abuse and molestation, and employment practices liability. 

No Employee Raiding 
Customer recognizes and acknowledges that CSMC expends considerable time and 
effort and incurs substantial expense in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel. 
Customer agrees to not hire as an employee or independent contractor, either directly 
or indirectly, any employee of CSMC during the term of this Agreement and for 
period of one hundred twenty (120) days after such person's termination of 
employment with CSMC. Customer agrees that a breach of the foregoing restriction 
would cause irreparable harm to CSMC’s business and the damages therefrom would 
be difficult if not impossible to measure. Consequently, if Customer breaches this 
provision, Customer will pay to CSMC liquidated damages fixed at twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the CSMC employee’s yearly compensation, or projected yearly 
compensation, at the time of any such breach. 

Termination of Agreement 
IACS may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing written notice of 
cancellation to CSMC at least 30 days prior to cancellation. Within 15 days of 
transmittal of a cancellation notice, IACS shall pay to CSMC all unpaid fees and 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 11 of 13 
!

IACS shall reimburse CSMC for all costs incurred by IACS to provide the Services. 
The parties agree that those reimbursable costs would be difficult to calculate and 
therefore agree that if IACS terminates this Agreement without cause within the first 
year from the Start Date, IACS will pay to CSMC as liquidated damages fees 
equivalent to three months of the standard monthly fee for Services. If IACS 
terminates without cause in year two following the Start Date, the liquidated damages 
payable to IACS shall be two months of the fees for Services. IACS may terminate 
the Agreement without cause and without paying liquidated damages at any time 
following the second anniversary of the Start Date. CSMC may terminate this 
Agreement at any time without cause and without liability by providing IACS written 
notice of cancellation 30 days prior to termination. However, if IACS terminates this 
Agreement for cause (e.g., due to lack of payment), IACS need not provide advance 
notice of cancellation. 

Sole and Entire Agreement 

This Agreement sets forth the full and complete agreement between the parties and 
fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings between the parties 
hereto, whether oral or written, pertaining to the subject matter hereof. No verbal 
modifications, additions, or deletions from this Agreement shall be permitted. All 
changes to this Agreement must be made in writing and signed by both parties. 

Governing Law, Arbitration and Time-Bar on Claims 

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. CSMC and IACS agree that any and all disputes or controversies of any 
nature relating to or arising at any time under this Agreement or otherwise in 
connection with the rights and obligations under this Agreement shall be resolved by 
binding arbitration, which shall constitute the sole forum for any disputes between the 
parties to this Agreement. This means by signing this Agreement, each party is 
waiving the right to take court action and is waiving the right to a jury. Each party 
also agrees to, and hereby does, waive any right to compel the other party to 
participate as a defendant, cross-defendant or in any other capacity in any court 
action, including any action for indemnity. Arbitration shall be governed by the 
JAMS Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures conducted in Orange 
County, California. The parties to this Agreement further agree that any arbitration 
demand must be filed with JAMS within 12 months from the time of any breach of 
this Agreement, and that any claim commenced or filed after that time shall be time-
barred as a matter of law. 

Severability 



%

%
%
%

!
!

Charter School Management Corporation (CSMC) Services Agreement Page 12 of 13 
!

The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any part of it is found 
unenforceable, the other paragraphs shall remain fully valid and enforceable. 

Notice 

Any and all notices required under this Agreement shall be delivered by overnight 
mail by a nationally recognized carrier to the following addresses: 
CSMC HEADQUARTERS Innovations Academy 
Attn. Mr. Sandro Lanni Christine Kuglen 
40925 County Center Drive 10380 Spring Canyon Road 
Suite 110 San Diego, CA 92131 
Temecula, CA 92591  

Signatures 
CSMC Customer 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 
Sandro Lanni, President Christine Kuglen, Chief Education Officer 
CSMC Innovations Academy 

Date: _________________________ Date: _________________________ 

 


